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Financial Highlights (in thousands, except per share data)

Year 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Revenues $182,016 $74,065 $103,103 $46,911 $5,609
Research and development 32,001 28,978 19,419 8,297 4,587
Operating income (loss) 30,989 (51,247) 22,973 14,661 (3,452)
Net income (loss) 20,717 (45,573) 14,017 11,040 (3,397)
Earnings (loss) per share — diluted 0.41 (0.99) 0.29 0.25 (0.37)
Non-GAAP financial measures:*
Adjusted operating income (loss) 36,199 (6,899) 30,435 15,637 (3,444)
Adjusted net income (loss) 25,927 (1,225) 21,479 12,016 (3,389)
Adjusted carnings (loss) per share — diluted 0.51 (0.03) 0.44 0.28 (0.37)
Revenues (in millions)
0.

60— $60.2

55—

50—

45 —

$41.2

40—

35—

30— $28.8

25

20| $19.9

2001

Q2

2002

Adjusted Net Income (Loss) (in millions)*

15

al

* Excluding charges relating to amortization of goodwill, deferred stock compensation, write-off of in-process research and development, and impairment of

815 -$0.3

Q2 Q3
2001

Q4 Ql Q2

Q4

$11.1

Q3 Q4
2002

goodwill and other intangible assets. See Reconciliarion Table of GAAP to Non-GAAP Financial Measures provided on page 46.






Letter to the Shareholders

Silicon Laboratories experienced a period of tremendous
growth in 2002. We are pleased to report annual revenues of
$182 million, which are the highest level in the company’s
history and 146% greater than our 2001 revenues. We have
returned seven consecutive quarters of double-digit revenue
growth, resulting from our focused efforts to expand both
our customer base and our product portfolio. Additionally,
we achieved adjusted operating margins before certain non-
cash charges of 26% in the fourth quarter of 2002, which
exceeded our corporate goal* During 2002, we also expand-
ed our operations with a larger global sales and marketing
presence and enhanced test capabilities at our Austin facility
and with our partners in Asia.

The philosophy that excellence is our only option infuses
our corporate culture and is essential to Silicon Laboratories’
stability, growth, and potential. Since the company’s incep-
tion, we have demonstrated the ability to successfully execute
our business plans. We have grown a strong, diversified busi-
ness based on innovative technology, a drive to succeed, and
a unique vision of the future.

~ See Reconciliation Table of GAAP to Non-GAAP Financial Measures on page 46.

Ovur Innovation

Silicon Laboratories’ success is a direct result of our best-in-
class engineering team. Analog-intensive mixed-signal design
expertise is extremely difficult to find. Silicon Laboratories’
199 engineers include designers with more than 10 years’
average experience. In a field less than 20 years old, this team
represents the best talent in the industry.

Our engineering team has a proven track record of
developing innovative products that are quickly and success-
fully designed into leading applications, including a number
of industry-first solutions like the silicon DAA, single-chip
RF synthesizer, and 100% CMOS GSM transceiver. These
solutions moved quickly from inception to widespread
adoption and command significant market share in their
respective segments.

We continue to grow our engineering team with both
experienced industry veterans and new graduates from the
nation’s top universities. A challenging and creative en-
vironment, the ability to move among projects to tackle
new technical problems, and the opportunity to work with
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the top engineering minds in the industry allow us to add
superior talent to our founding engineering team. Silicon
Laboratories’ engineers and their unique ability to innovate
will remain a key differentiator for the company.

Our Drive

The passion demonstrated by our engineering team and its
ability to design the world’s leading mixed-signal ICs is also
reflected in our marketing, sales, manufacturing, and appli-
cations efforts. Our employees truly are enthusiastic about
Silicon Laboratories and are driven to work hard to ensure

the company’s success.

Driven to Create. During 2002, we introduced several new
products, including next-generation silicon DAAs, a wide-
band ProSLIC® solution, a new precision clock IC, and the
Aero+ GSM transceiver. Each of these products leverages an
existing core technology into new applications, extending
our leadership in the wireless, wireline, and optical areas.

We remain committed to our research and development
efforts in each of these areas. Today, we have the largest new
product development pipeline in the company’s history and
expect to roll out several new products in 2003. We continue
to view our intellectual property as key to our success, both
as an indicator of the uniqueness of our technology and as a
barrier to entry for our competition.

Driven to Grow. Multiple product areas generated mean-
ingful revenues in 2002, underscoring the strength of
our business. The ISOmodem™, ProSLIC, RF synthesizer,
silicon DAA, and Aerc™ transceiver revenues all grew signifi-
cantly during the year.

The Aero transceiver demonstrated the most significant
growth in 2002. Based on its innovative architecture, which
significantly reduces required board space and component
count in cellular designs, the Aero transceiver has been
adopted by twenty leading GSM handset and module manu-
facturers.

Because of the faster-than-expected ramp of the Aero
transceiver, we were required to quickly éxpand our test
capacity to support product demand. Despite the increased
capital expenditures associated with this test equipment
expansion and the normal manufacturing demands early in
a production ramp of this magnitude, our gross margins
during 2002 averaged a strong 56.1% of overall revenues.
By the end of 2002, we had successfully expanded our
Ausun manufacturing facilities to meet the demand for
Aero and streamlined the product’s manufacturing process.
We also added off-shore test capabilities that expand our

capacity, reduce cycle time, and have a higher return on
investment.

We maintained a strong focus in 2002 on expanding
our global presence in support of our growing international
business. In 2002, more than two-thirds of our business was
in Asia and Europe. To provide real-time technical support
to our existing customers and sales support to the growing
business, we added or expanded facilities in France, the Unit-
ed Kingdom, Japan, China, and Taiwan during the year.

Qur Vision

At Silicon Laboratories, we have a strong vision: we strive
to be the global leader in mixed signal IC technology. Our
ability to set a clear vision for the company and lead the world-
wide team is essential to the company’s success and lohg-
term growth.

Vision for the Coming Year. We remain committed to
all areas of our company and expect business, revenue, and
earnings per share growth to continue in 2003. We are ex-
panding R&D efforts in each product area with thirteen new
products currently under development. We expect to an-
nounce both new derivative products and new fundamental
cores in 2003. Additionally, we plan to leverage our technol-
ogy into new application areas.

We believe revenue growth in 2003 will be driven by new
customers, market share gains, and higher ASPs generated by
next-generation products with additional functionality. As an
example, the higher-speed ISOmodems command ASPs of
up to three times those of the original ISOmodem products.
Our next-generation DAAs, new wireless products, and
Dual ProSLIC all present the opportunity for ASP growth.
Additionally, we expect to see more products generating
revenues in 2003, further expanding the company’s growth
potential.

In 2003, we expect all three of our product areas to
grow. This speaks to the strength of our company and makes
us less dependent on a single product, customer, or market
for the overall health of our business. We plan to outsource
more product testing to off-shore facilities, which is a more
capital-efficient model.

Vision for the Future. As the trends toward increased
integration and performance continue, we believe Silicon
Laboratories is positioned to capture significant market
share with our current products and to continue to lead
the industry with new innovations. Because our designs are
implemented in CMOS, the ground is paved to enable
further integration of digital functonality. This continued




integration will drive higher ASPs while providing our cus-
tomers with improved performance, reduced board space
requirements, and lower overall system cost.

Our expertise in analog-intensive mixed-signal IC design
gives Silicon Laboratories a significant long-term advan-
tage over the competition. We have a strong track record
of designing and developing innovative technologies that
receive strong positive response from customers. Our en-
gineers have designed and patented numerous fundamental
core architectures that are changing the way digital com-
munications systems are designed. We will remain focused
on analyzing, identifying, and designing new core tech-
nologies as we grow our business with our ever-broadening
product portfolio.
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Our world-class sales, marketing, and applications teams
will continue to concentrate on supporting existing custom-
ers and cultivating and leveraging new relationships. We plan
to continue to add personnel to these teams world-wide in
2003. We believe that our expanded global presence will
drive continued growth in Asia and Europe.

Overall, Silicon Laboratories remains uniquely posi-
tioned in the semiconductor industry. We have sustained
growth even during the most challenging market conditions.
The strength of our business strategy and the unwavering
focus of our team have led the company to enviable levels of
success. We are committed to excellence in all areas of our
business and will continue to execute to our goal of global
leadership in mixed-signal IC technology.



“Our engineering teams are focused on
developing the industry’s most innovative
analog-intensive mixed-signal
IC technology.”

Dave Pietruszynski, Director of Engineering




Voice over Broadband Products

Silicon Laboratories’ ProSLIC provides
voice over DSL capabilities in

next-generation DSL modems.

Our Innovation

Our ability to innovate positions us as the industry’s pre-
eminent analog-intensive mixed-signal IC technology com-
pany. Silicon Laboratories has a strong history of designing
groundbreaking solutions in CMOS that represent not just in-
cremental improvements in technology but huge technological
leaps. Our products provide significant performance, space,
and cost advantages to our customers.

Numerous products in Silicon Laboratories’ portfolio
illustrate the company’s ability to innovate, beginning with
our first product, the silicon DAA. Our engineers were able
to implement the required isolation in two tiny CMOS
ICs, eliminating costly and bulky external components.
Ultmately, our DAAs captured a dominant share of the
V.90 modem market and were leveraged into a number of
other successful derivative products including a full family
of DAA solutions and the ISOmodem embedded modem
products. As the world’s smallest complete modem solution,
the ISOmodem is ideal for applications including satellite set-
top boxes, security systems, point-of-sale terminals, and digital
video recorders. The ProSLIC subscriber line interface circuit,
shown above, targets the growing voice over broadband market
and adds voice communications capabilities to customer prem-
ises equipment (CPE). The full family of ProSLIC solutions
covers the full range of CPE to central office (CO) applications.

In the wireless area, the company provides a family of

"monolithic RF synthesizers that serve a wide range of wire-

less applications, including GSM/GPRS cellular terminals,
ISM-band applications, XM satellite radio receivers, and 3G
cellular products. Silicon Laboratories also offers the Aero
GSM transceiver products, which are the world’s only 100%
CMOS cellular transceivers and are designed into over 60
leading GSM handsets.

Silicon Laboratories’ optical products include clock and
data recovery solutions, high-speed transceivers and precision
clock ICs for a wide variety of optical communications and test
equipment applications.

Silicon Laboratories has applied for or received over 161
patents as of the end of 2002 across all three product areas.
These patents, which are fundamental architectural patents,
both underscore the innovative nature of Silicon Laboratories’
designs and provide a barrier to entry for competition. With
the combination of the difficulty of the designs and the strong
patent portfolio, we believe Silicon Laboratories often leads
the competition by several years.

Silicon Laboratories possesses a unique ability to create
innovative wireless, wireline, and optical products, which we
believe will continue to drive the company’s success going
forward.



“We are driven to achieve the highest
standards throughout the company.”

Shuang Pan, Senior Test Engineer
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Silicon Laboratories’ single chip RF synthesizer
is the industrys most integrated synthesizer solution

for @ wide range of wireless applications.

Our Drive

Our drive to develop the industry’s best technology and
provide world-class support to our customers has resulted in
Silicon Laboratories’ enviable success and growth. Through-
out the company, Silicon Laboratories’ employees possess a
true passion for the technology we bring to market, which re-
sults in a will-to-win attitude that is unequaled in the industry.

The drive to succeed embraced by Silicon Laboratories’
employees is instilled by an experienced, focused, and respect-
ed management team. This team has extensive experience with
developing innovative technology and growing billion dollar
businesses. The best practices, integrity, and enthusiasm dem-
onstrated by the management team inspire each employee to
work hard to further the success of the company.

Our drive is reflected in our engineers’ ability to resolve
engincering challenges with innovative solutions. An example
of this is Silicon Laboratories’ very successful single-chip RF
synthesizer, shown above. Our RF synthesizer is the world’s
smallest and best performing synthesizer solution, provid-
ing our customers with the smallest footprint and associated
board space and cost savings. Our RF synthesizer business has

Wireless Applications

expanded beyond the mobile phone space that we originally
targeted into applications including satellite radio receivers,
such as the one featured above.

Each area of Silicon Laboratories’ business reflects the
drive of our employees. Our sales, marketing, and applications
efforts show our determination to provide comprehensive
technical support and to foster strong customer relationships.
We have established or expanded our operations offshore to
support customers’ needs and cultivate new relationships.
Overall, customers find our marketing and sales teams to be
technically savvy, responsive, and thorough.

Our manufacturing efforts consistently meet the fast-
growing customer demand for our products. As an ISO 9001-
certified manufacturer, Silicon Laboratories adheres to the
highest quality standards in the industry and endeavors to
provide superior pr_q‘(.i‘ucts and service.

Our drive to achieve excellence in all areas of our business
establishes Silicon Laboratories as a market leader and helps to
ensure our future success.




“We have a solid vision for the future and

remain focused on developing breakthrough

analog-intensive mixed-signal IC technology.”

Brad Fluke, Vice President




Qur Vision

Our vision for Silicon Laboratories is to establish the company
as the industry’s technology leader by identifying, designing,
and marketing best-in-class mixed-signal IC solutions. Our
strategy is to leverage our superior mixed-signal design ex-
pertise into growth-oriented applications with long-term
potential and multiple customers. We will provide innova-
tive, high-performance products, systems, and solutions that
bring added value to customers in markets where we can
establish and sustain a distinct competitive advantage. In
our six-year history, we have taken huge strides toward our

- vision. During even the most challenging market conditions,
we have remained focused and continued to successfully ex-
ecute our original business plans. The growth path of Silicon
Laboratories underscores the strength of the company’s vision
and serves as a positive indicator of our future potential.

To support our vision, we listen carefully to our key cus-
tomers’ needs and then employ a stringent set of criteria when
identifying new products. Our goal is to design first-of-a-kind
solutions for large market opportunities. We seek to establish
a sustainable competitive advantage through the strength of
our intellectual property and to create products with long life
cycles and revenue streams that generate high gross margins.
Finally, we strive to design and patent fundamental core tech-
nology that we can leverage into full families of products. By
adhering to these strict criteria, we have been able to diversify
our product portfolio, customer base, and revenue mix, creat-
ing a company that is growing quickly and is more resistant to
fluctuating conditions typical of technology markets.

Because of the deep experience of the management and
engineering teams at Silicon Laboratories, we are able to
thoroughly assess market opportunities and develop new

GSM Cellular Handsets

Silicon Laborarories’ 100% CMOS Aero GSM
transceiver is the industrys most integrated RF
Sront-end solution for leading cellular handsets.

technology that is unparalleled in its integration, perfor-
mance, and feature set. An example of this ability is the
Aero GSM transceiver, pictured above. The Aero is a 100%
CMOS transceiver for cellular applications and integrates the
functionality of nearly 100 external discrete components re-
quired by traditional implementations, including expensive
and bulky VCO modules, into our three-chip solution with
a tiny footprint. Aero quickly achieved broad acceptance
among leading GSM handset and module manufacturers,
and, based on our estimates, captured 6% of this market just
three quarters after volume production began.

While Aero is an interesting success story in our product
portfolio, a key aspect of the company’s vision is to be a broad-
based supplier that is less dependent on a single product or
market. To this end, Silicon Laboratories has strong R&D
efforts focused on wireless, wireline, and optical products. We
have introduced eight key product platforms that have each
been leveraged into multple derivative products.

Going forward, we believe that Silicon Laboratories is
uniquely positioned to be a dominant force in the mixed-signal
IC market. All of our core technologies are implemented
in CMOS, which will ease the further integration of digital
functionality in future derivatives. This integration is required
as communications products continue to become smaller,
less expensive, and more feature rich. As our success in digital
communications products grows, we will continue to seck
market opportunities outside of the communications space.

Based on the strength of our vision and our unique ability
to execute our business plans, we believe that we are poised for
tremendous growth in the future.



Qur Innovation. Qur Drive. Our Vision.

At Silicon Laboratories, we are uniquely positioned to be
the pre-eminent supplier of analog-intensive mixed-signal
IC solutions. We have a clear vision for the company and a
proven track record of success. Our employees understand
and embrace the company’s vision, and are passionate and
committed to quality in all areas of our operation. Ulti-
mately, it is our ability to innovate that sets us apart from the

competition as our engineering team designs and develops
the world’s leading mixed-signal technology.

Based on our strong vision, drive to succeed, and ability
to innovate, Silicon Laboratories is an unmatched force
in the mixed-signal IC industry. We remain focused on our
goal of being the world’s leader in the innovation of mixed-
signal IC technology.
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Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opemﬂons

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes, which
appear elsewhere in this Annual Report. The information in this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements based
on our current expectations. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, and actual future results may
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. Among the factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements are: risks that we may not be able to maintain our histori-
cal growth rate; quarterly fluctuations in revenues and operating results; risks that we may not be able to manage strains
associated with our growth; difficulties developing new products that achieve market acceptance; difficulties managing our
international sales; credit risks associated with our accounts receivable; geographic concentration of our manufacturers,
assemblers, test service providers and customers in the Pacific. Rim subjects us to risks of natural disasters, war and politi-
cal unrest; dependence on a limited number of products and customers; product development risks; intellectual property
litigation risks including risks associated with our litigation with TDK Semiconductor; risks associated with the volatility of
our stock price; and the competitive and cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry. For a discussion of these and other
factors that could impact our financial results and cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking
statements, please refer to our recent filings with the SEC, particularly our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 28, 2002. Our fiscal year end financial reporting periods are a 52- or 53-week year ending on the Saturday clos-
est to December 31st. Fiscal 2002 had 52 weeks and ended on December 28, 2002. Fiscal 2001 had 52 weeks and ended
on December 29, 2001. Fiscal 2000 had 52 weeks and ended on December 30, 2000. Fiscal year 2003 will have 53 weeks
with the extra week occurring in the fourth quarter.

Overview

We design and develop proprietary, analog-intensive mixed-signal integrated circuits (ICs) for the communications in-
dustry. Our innovative ICs can dramatically reduce the cost, size and system power requirements of the products that our
customers sell to consumers. We currently offer ICs that can be incorporated into communications devices, such as wireless
phones and modems, as well as cable and satellite set-top boxes, residential communication gateways for cable or DSL, and
optical network equipment. Customers during fiscal 2002 included Agere Systems, Ambit, EchoStar, PC-TEL, Samsung,
Smart Link, Sony, Texas Instruments, Thomson and Wavecom.

Our company was founded in 1996. Our business has grown rapidly since our inception, as reflected by our employee
headcount, which increased to 364 employees at the end of fiscal 2002, from 279 employees at the end of fiscal 2001, 256
at the end of fiscal 2000, and 148 at the end of fiscal 1999. As a “fabless” semiconductor company, we rely on third-party
semiconductor fabricators to manufacture the silicon wafers that reflect our IC designs. Each wafer contains numerous die,
which are cut from the wafer to create a chip for an IC. We also rely on third-party assemblers to assemble and package these
die prior to final product testing and shipping.

We offer numerous mixed-signal communication ICs across eight product areas. We commenced research and development
for our first IC product, the DAA, in October 1996. We introduced our DAA product in the first quarter of fiscal 1998,
and first received acceptance of this product for inclusion in a customer’s device, which we refer to as a design win, in March
1998. The first commercial shipment of our DAA product was made in April 1998. Based on the success of our family of
DAA products, we achieved profitability in the fourth quarter of fiscal 1998. In 1999, we introduced a voice codec product,
an ISOmodem product and our RF synthesizer product. In 2000, we introduced our ProSLIC product and a clock and
data recovery product suitable for SONET physical layer applications. In 2001, we introduced several products, including
a GSM transceiver chipset, a digital subscriber line analog front end and added several new optical networking products.
In 2002, we expanded our existing product areas by introducing the third-generation silicon DAA product family, Aero+
transceiver and Wideband ProSLIC. During fiscal 2002, sales of our wireline products and wireless products accounted
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for 54% and 46% of our revenues, respectively. During fiscal 2001, sales of our wireline products and wireless products ac-
counted for 74% and 25% of our revenues, respectively. During fiscal 2000, sales of our wireline products accounted for 95%
of our reveneus.

Many of our end customers purchase products indirectly from us through distributors and contract manufacturers. An
end customer purchasing through a contract manufacturer typically instructs such contract manufacturer to obtain our
products and incorporate such products with other components for sale by such contract manufacturer to the end cus-
tomer. Although we actually sell the products to, and are paid by, the distributors and contract manufacturers, we refer
to such end customer as our customer. During fiscal 2002, one end customer, Samsung, represented 16% of our revenues.
During fiscal 2001, three customers, in the aggregate, represented 40% of our revenues, including 15% for PC-TEL, 13%
for Agere Systems and 12% for Samsung. In fiscal 2000, PC-TEL accounted for 46% of our revenues. No other single
end customer accounted for more than 10% of our revenues in any of these years. Two of our distributors, Uniquest
and Edom Technology, each selling products to several customers in Asia, represented 20% and 16% of our fiscal 2002
revenues, and 14% and 12% of our fiscal 2001 revenues, respectively. No other distributor accounted for more than 10%
of our revenues in fiscal years 2002, 2001 or 2000.

The percentage of our revenues derived from customers located outside of the United States was 79% in fiscal 2002, 66%
in fiscal 2001, and 21% in fiscal 2000. All of our revenues to date have been denominated in U.S. dollars. We believe that
a large percentage of our revenues will continue to be derived from customers outside of the United States as our products
receive acceptance in international markets.

The sales cycle for the test and evaluation of our ICs can range from one month to 12 months or more. An additional three
to six months or more may be required before a customer ships a significant volume of devices that incorporate our ICs. Due
to this lengthy sales cycle, we may experience a significant delay between incurring expenses for research and development
and selling, general and administrative efforts, and the generation of corresponding sales, if any. Consequently, if sales in
any quarter do not occur when expected, expenses and inventory levels could be disproportionately high, and our operating
results for that quarter and, potentially, future quarters would be adversely affected. Moreover, the amount of time between
initial research and development and commercialization of a product, if ever, generally is substantially longer than the sales
cycle for the product. Accordingly, if we incur substantial research and development costs without developing a commer-
cially successful product, our operating results, as well as our growth prospects, could be adversely affected.

Our limited operating history and rapid growth across our product areas makes it difficult for us to assess the impact of sea-
sonal factors on our business. Because many of our ICs are designed for use in consumer products such as PCs and wireless
telephones, we expect that the demand for our products will be subject to seasonal demand resulting in increased sales in
the third and fourth qﬁarters of each year when customers place orders to meet holiday demand.

The following describes the line items set forth in our consolidated statements of operations:

Revenues. Revenues are generated principally by sales of our ICs. We recognize revenue upon the transfer of title, which
generally occurs upon shipment to our customers. Revenues are deferred on shipments to distributors until they are resold
by such distributors to end customers. Our products typically carry a one-year replacement guarantee. Replacements have
been insignificant to date. Our revenues are subject to variation from period to period due to the volume of shipments
made within a period and the prices we charge for our products. The vast majority of our revenues was negotiated at prices
that reflect a discount from the list prices for our products. These discounts are made for a variety of reasons, including
to establish a relationship with a new customer, as an incentive for customers to purchase products in larger volumes, to
provide profit margin to our distributors who resell our products or in response to competition. In addition, as a product
matures, we expect that the average selling price for our products will decline due to the greater availability of competing
products. The sales of our wireless products into the highly competitive GSM handset market are expected to comprise
a larger percentage of our revenue, resulting in increased downward pressure on our average selling prices for individual
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products. Our ability to increase revenues in the future is dependent on increased demand for our established products
and our ability to ship larger volumes of those products in response to such demand, as well as our ability to develop new
products and subsequently achieve customer acceptance of newly introduced products.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues includes the cost of purchasing finished silicon wafers processed by independent found-
ries; costs associated with assembly, test and shipping of those products; costs of personnel and equipment associated with
manufacturing support, logistics and quality assurance; costs of software royalties and amortization of purchased software
and other intellectual property license costs; an allocated portion of our occupancy costs; and allocable depreciation of
testing equipment and leasehold improvements. Generally, we depreciate equipment over four years on a straight line basis
and leasehold improvements over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the applicable lease term. Recently introduced
products tend to have higher cost of revenues per unit due to initially low production volumes required by our custom-
ers and higher costs associated with new package variations. Generally, as production volumes for a product increase, unit
production costs tend to decrease as our yields improve and our semiconductor fabricators, assemblers and our internal test
operations achieve greater economies of scale for that product. Additionally, the cost of wafer procurement, which is a sig-
nificant component of cost of goods sold, varies cyclically with overall demand for semiconductors and availability of supply
from our foundries. ‘

Research and Development. Research and development expense consists primarily of compensation and related costs
of employees engaged in research and development activities and the related new product mask and wafer costs, external
consulting and services costs, as well as an allocated portion of our occupancy costs for such operations. We depreciate our
research and development equipment over four years and amortize our purchased software from computer-aided design tool
vendors over four years. Development activities include the design of new products and creation of new product masks and
wafers and test methodologies to ensure compliance with required specifications.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense consists primarily of personnel-related
expenses, related allocable portion of our occupancy costs, sales commissions to independent sales representatives, profes-
sional fees, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, patent litigation legal fees, other promotional and marketing expenses,
and reserves for bad debt. Write offs of uncollectible accounts have been insignificant to date.

Write Off of In-Process Research and Development. Write off of in-process research and development reflects the write
off of in-process research and development costs which we acquired in connection with our acquisition of Krypton Isola-

tion, Inc. (Krypton).

Goodwill Amortization. Goodwill amortization through December 2001 includes the amortization of goodwill pur-
chased in connection with our acquisitions of Krypton in August 2000 and SNR in October 2000. Goodwill was amortized
over four to five years using the straight line method. We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, at the beginning of fiscal 2002 and accordingly have ceased amortization
of goodwill.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets reflects the
charge to write-down that portion of the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets that are in excess of their
fair market value. ‘

Amortization of Deferred Stock Compensation. In connection with the grant of stock options and direct issuances of
stock to our employees, we recorded deferred stock compensation, representing, for accounting purposes, the difference
between the exercise price of option grants, or the issuance price of direct issuances of stock, as the case may be, and the
deemed fair value of our common stock at the time of such grants or issuances. The deferred stock compensation is amor-
tized over the vesting period of the applicable options or shares, generally five to eight vears. The amortization of deferred
stock compensation is recorded as an operating expense.
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Interest Income. Interest income reflects interest earned on average cash, cash equivalents and investment balances. We
may from time to time elect to invest in tax-advantaged short-term investments yielding lower nominal interest proceeds.

Interest Expense. Intérest expense consists of interest on our long-term debt and capital lease obligations.

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) reflects our share of losses in our equity investment, ASIC Design
Services, Inc. (ADS) and the gain on the disposal of fixed assets.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. We accrue a provision (benefit) for federal and state income tax at the applicable
statutory rates adjusted for non-deductible expenses, research and development tax credits and interest income from tax-
advantaged short-term'investments.

Resulis of Opera'i’ionsQ Comparison of Fiscal 2002 to Fiscal 2001

Revenues. Revenues in fiscal 2002 were $182.0 million, an increase of $107.9 million, or 146%, from revenues of $74.1
million in fiscal 2001. The increase was primarily attributable to significant growth in the volume of sales for our wireless
products, including the Aero transceiver and RF synthesizer, reflecting a growing number of customers adopting these
products into their offerings. We also continued to see significant growth in the sales of our wireline products, particularly
the ISOmodem and DAA, reflecting increasing demand by existing customers for these products. During fiscal 2002, we
experienced normal decreases in the average selling prices for certain products. However, these price decreases were offset
by the significant increases in sales volumes for our products and the introduction of higher priced next generation products
and product extensions.

Gross Profit. Gross profit in fiscal 2002 was $102.1 million, or 56.1% of revenues, an increase of $59.9 million, or 142%,
as compared with gross profit of $42.1 million, or 56.8% of revenues, in fiscal 2001. The increase in gross profit dollars was
primarily due to the substantial increase in sales volume. The decrease in gross margin percentage was primarily due to a
greater portion of our sales being comprised of our lower margin wireless products, which have lower average selling prices
and higher material costs than our other products. The gross margin percentage in fiscal year 2002 was also negatively
impacted by start up cdsts associated with the rapid production ramp of our Aero transceiver product.

Research and Development. Research and development expense in fiscal 2002 was $32.0 million, or 17.6% of revenues,
which reflected an increase of $3.0 million, or 10.4%, as compared with research and development expense of $29.0 million,
or 39.1% of revenues, in fiscal 2001. The increase in the dollar amount of research and development expense was principally
due to increased staffing and associated costs to pursue new product development opportunities, and continue to develop
new testing methodologies for newly introduced and existing products. As a percentage of revenues, research and develop-
ment expense decreased significantly due to the substantial increase in revenues in fiscal 2002. We expect that research and
development expense will increase in absolute dollars in future periods as we continue to increase our staffing and associated
costs to pursue additional new product development opportunities, and may fluctuate as a percentage of revenues due to
changes in sales volume and the timing of certain expensive items related to new product development initiatives, such as
engineering mask and wafer costs.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense in fiscal 2002 was $33.9 million, or
18.6% of revenues, which reflected an increase of $13.8 million, or 68.9%, as compared to selling, general and administra-
tive expense of $20.0 million, or 27.0% of revenues, in fiscal 2001. The increase in the dollar amount of selling, general
and administrative expense was principally attributable to increased staffing and associated costs, legal fees incurred during
patent litigation, sales commissions associated with our higher revenues and employee bonuses resulting from increased
earnings. We expect to.continue to incur significant legal expenses, fluctuating with case activity, during fiscal year 2003
as a result of the ongoing infringement lawsuit filed against us by TDK Semiconductor Corporation in August 2001. We
expect that selling, general and administrative expense will increase in absolute dollars in future periods as we expand our
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sales channels, marketing efforts and administrative infrastru¢ture. In addition, we expect selling, general and administra-
tive expense to fluctuate as a percentage of revenues because of (1) the likelihood that indirect sales distribution channels,
which typically entail the payment of commissions, will account for a larger portion of our revenues in future periods and,
therefore, increase our selling, general and administrative expense relative to a direct sales force performing at satisfactory
levels of productivity; (2) fluctuating usage of advertising to promote our products and, in particular, our newly introduced
products; and (3) potential significant variability in our future sales volume.

Gooedwill Amortization. We did not incur goodwill amortization in fiscal 2002 due to the adoption of SFAS No. 142.
Goodwill amortization in fiscal 2001 was $4.2 million. In fiscal 2001, we wrote off the majority of our goodwill balances
after determining that they were permanently impaired.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. During fiscal 2001, we performed an assessment of the carrying
value of our long-lived assets recorded in connection with our acquisitions of Krypton and SNR. As a result of this assess-
ment, we concluded that the value of these assets had become permanently impaired and recorded charges of $33.3 million
to write off related goodwill and $1.6 million to reduce the carrying value of related intangible assets to their fair value.
During fiscal 2002, we determined that the remaining goodwill of $37,000 related to Krypton was impaired and wrote off
the balance. There were no other impairments of goodwill and other intangible assets in fiscal 2002.

Amortization of Deferred Stock Compensation. We recorded deferred stock compensation for the difference between
the exercise price of option grants or the issuance price of direct issuances of stock, as the case may be, and the deemed fair
value of our common stock at the time of such grants or issuances. We are amortizing this amount over the vesting periods
of the applicable options or restricted stock, which resulted in amortization expense of $5.2 million in fiscal 2002, as com-
pared to $5.3 million in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2003, we expect our amortization expense to stay at roughly this same level.

Interest Income. Interest income in fiscal 2002 was $1.6 million, as compared to $3.6 million in fiscal 2001. The decrease
was generally due to lower interest rates on cash and short-term investments balances during the current year and our transi-
tion to tax-exempt investments, which bear even lower interest rates.

Interest Expense. Interest expense in fiscal 2002 was $0.6 million, as compared to $0.8 million in fiscal 2001. The decrease
in interest expense was primarily due to lower debt and lease payable balances during the recent period. In December 2002,
we prepaid $2.4 million in satisfaction of our remaining debt and lease obligations to three equipment financing institu-
tions. As a result, we expect to pay little to no interest expense in fiscal 2003.

Other Income (Expense). Other expense in fiscal 2002 was $0.6 million, which primarily reflects our share of the losses in
our investment in ADS. We did not have any equity investments, and therefore no corresponding losses, in fiscal 2001.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. Our effective tax provision rate, excluding the impact of goodwill amortization, im-
pairment of goodwill and other intangible assets, and deferred stock compensation amortization, was 29.0% in fiscal 2002,
as compared to our effective tax benefit rate of 69.6% in fiscal 2001. Such fiscal 2002 effective tax provision rate reflects our
tax benefits from our estimated research and development tax credit, tax-exempt interest income, and other deductions. The
effective tax benefit in fiscal 2001 was attributable to our pre-tax loss as well as tax benefits from our estimated research and
development tax credit, tax-exempt interest income and other deductions. For additional information regarding our provi-
sion (benefit) for income taxes, see Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Compoarison of Fiscal 2001 to Fiscal 2000

Revenues. Revenues in fiscal 2001 were $74.1 million, representing a decrease of $29.0 million, or 28.1%, from revenues
of $103.1 million in fiscal 2000. The decrease in the dollar amount of revenues was primarily due to a decline in the sales
volume of our DAA family of products, reflecting the rapid deterioration in demand for personal computers. Revenues
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from non-DAA products, such as the ISOmodem, the ProSLIC, the RF Synthesizer and our optical networking products,
accounted for approximately 45.1% of revenues in fiscal 2001 as compared to 13.2% of revenues in fiscal 2000.

Graoss Profit. Cost of revenues decreased $3.6 million, or 10.1%, to $32.0 million in fiscal 2001 from $35.6 million in fiscal
2000, and represented 43.2% of revenues in fiscal 2001 and 34.5% of revenues in fiscal 2000, respectively. Gross profit in
fiscal 2001 was $42.1 million, or 56.8%, of revenues, a decrease of $25.4 million, or 37.6%, as compared with gross profit of
$67.5 million, or 65.5%, of revenues in fiscal 2000. The decrease in both the dollar amount of gross profit and gross margin
percentage was primarily due to the substantial decrease in sales volume, decreased utilization of our testing capacity and
higher reserves for excess inventory due to greater fluctuations in demand for our products.

Research and Development. Research and development expense in fiscal 2001 was $29.0 million, or 39.1%, of revenues,
which reflected an increase of $9.6 million, or 49.5%, as compared with research and development expense of $19.4 million,
or 18.8%, of revenues in fiscal 2000. The increase in the dollar amount of research and development expense was principally
due to significant increases in new product development initiatives, usage of more expensive advanced silicon CMOS pro-
cesses, and increased spending to develop test methodologies for new products. As a percentage of revenues, research and
development expense increased significantly due to the substantial decrease in sales volume in fiscal 2001.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense in fiscal 2001 was $20.0 million, or
27.0%, of revenues, which reflected an increase of $2.3 million, or 13.0%, as compared to selling, general and administra-
tive expense of $17.7 million, or 17.1%, of revenues in fiscal 2000. The increase in the dollar amount of selling, general and
administrative expense 'was principally attributable to increased staffing, but was partially offset by a decrease in spending
on patent litigation fees.

Write Off of In-Process Research and Development. There was no write off of in-process research and development in
fiscal 2001. Write off of in-process research and development in fiscal 2000 was $0.4 million as a result of the acquisition
of Krypton.

Goodwill Amortization. Goodwill amortization in fiscal 2001 was $4.2 million compared to $3.3 million in fiscal 2000.
This increase was primarily due to the timing of the acquisitions of Krypton and SNR in late fiscal 2000. In fiscal 2001
we recorded a charge to reduce the carrying value of goodwill as discussed below in Impairment of Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. During fiscal 2001, we performed an assessment of the carry-
ing value of our long-lived assets recorded in connection with our acquisitions of Krypton and SNR. This assessment was
performed because we became aware of the following factors and circumstances:

+» The revenue streams associated with those assets had decreased significantly since their acquisition and we
did not expect to have any significant or identifiable future cash flows related to those assets;

» We determined that further development or alternative uses of the acquired technologies were remote; and

» The Krypton office was closed in August 2001 and the related employees had since either ceased to work
for us or been reassigned to new projects, which were unrelated to the projects on which they previously worked.

As a result of this assessment, we concluded that the value of these assets had become permanently impaired and recorded
charges of $33.3 million to write off related goodwill and $1.6 million to reduce the carrying value of related intangible
assets to their fair value.




MD&A

Amortization of Deferred Stcck Compensation, We have recorded deferred stock compensation for the difference be-
tween the exercise price of option grants or the issuance price of direct issuances of stock, and the deemed fair value of
our common stock at the time of such grants or issuances. We are amortizing this amount over the vesting periods of the
applicable options or restricted stock, which resulted in amortization expense of $5.3 million in fiscal 2001 as compared to
$3.8 million in fiscal 2000. The increase in the dollar amount of amortization of deferred stock compensation was due to
additional deferred stock compensation for options and restricted stock issued.

Interest Income. Interest income in fiscal 2001 was $3.6 million as compared to $4.0 million in fiscal 2000. This decrease
was primarily due to lower prevailing interest rates.

Interest Expense. Interest expense in fiscal 2001 was $0.8 million as compared to $1.2 million in fiscal 2000. The decrease
in interest expense was primarily due to lower levels of debt in fiscal 2001.

Other Income (Expense). Other expense in fiscal 2001 was $2,000 as compared to other income of $0.1 million in
fiscal 2000.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. Qur effective tax rate, excluding the impacts of non-deductible write off of in-
process research and development, amortization of goodwill, impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets and
deferred stock compensation, was a benefit of 69.6% in fiscal 2001, as compared to our effective tax provision rate of 35.5%
in fiscal 2000. The fiscal 2001 tax benefit rate was higher than the fiscal 2000 tax provision rate primarily due to the fiscal
2001 increased tax benefit from the estimated research and development tax credit in proportion to the amount of the fiscal
2001 pre-tax loss.

Liquidity end Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as of December 28, 2002 consisted of $115.2 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-
term investments. Our short-term investments consist primarily of obligations of municipalities and agencies of the U.S.
government that have initial maturities of less than one year.

In addition, we have credit available under a bank credit facility with a revolving line of credit for borrowings and letters
of credit of up to the lesser of $5.0 million or 80% of eligible accounts receivable at the bank’s prime lending rate, which
was 4.25% as of December 28, 2002. At December 28, 2002, a letter of credit for $0.4 million related to a building lease
was outstanding under the revolving line of credit and $4.6 million was available for new borrowings or letters of credit.
The bank facility is secured by our accounts receivable, inventories, capital equipment and all other unsecured assets
(excluding intellectual property). The line of credit prohibits the payment of cash dividends and requires the maintenance
of tangible net worth and compliance with financial ratios that measure our immediate liquidity and our ongoing ability to
pay back our outstanding obligations. We believe we were in compliance with all covenants at December 28, 2002.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $39.0 million in fiscal 2002, compared to $11.7 million in fiscal 2001.
Fiscal 2002 operating cash flows reflect our net income of $20.7 million, as adjusted for non-cash charges (depreciation and
amortization and equity investment loss) of $19.4 million, and a net decrease in the non-cash components of our working
capital of $1.1 million. The increase in operating cash flow during fiscal 2002 was principally due to net income generated
by a higher volume of sales over a relatively fixed cost structure.

Net cash used in investing activities was $46.3 million in fiscal 2002, compared to net cash generated of $18.7 million in
fiscal 2001. The decrease in cash flows from investing activities during fiscal 2002 was principally due to the net purchase
of short-term investments of $22.1 million, capital expenditures of $21.5 million, and investment in other assets of $2.7
million. Capital expenditures increased by $16.1 million from 2001 principally due to the purchase of additional semicon-
ductor test equipment to allow us to test our wireless products for GSM mobile handsets. We also made investments in other
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assets of $2.7 million to acquire certain technology rights during fiscal 2002, including a $1.3 million equity investment in
ADS, a privately-held company engaged in the development of ICs for networking devices.

We anticipate capital expenditures of $12 million for fiscal 2003. Assuming the achievement by ADS of certain develop-
ment milestones and satisfaction of other conditions, we may be required to make an additional equity investment in ADS
of $1.5 million in fiscal 2003. Additionally, as part of our growth strategy, we will also continue to evaluate opportunities
to invest in or acquire other businesses or technologies that would complement our current offerings, expand the breadth
of our markets or enhance our technical capabilities.

Net cash used in financing activities was $1.1 million in fiscal 2002, compared to net cash generated of $25,000 in fiscal
2001. The decrease in cash flows from financing activities during fiscal 2002 was principally due to the prepayment of $2 .4
million to extinguish our debt and lease obligations with three institutional lenders. The decrease was partially offset by the
proceeds from stock option exercises and employee stock purchases.

The following is a summary of our consolidated contractual payment obligations at December 28, 2002 (see Note 7 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements), in thousands:

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafier

Facilities leases, net $2,071 $2,088 $2,144 $1,691 $1,022 $ -

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the rate of sales growth, market acceptance of our
products, the timing and extent of research and development projects and the expansion of our sales and marketing activi-
ties. We believe our existing cash balances and credit facility are sufficient to meet our capital requirements through at least
the next 12 months, although we could be required, or could elect, to seek additional funding prior to that time. We may
enter into acquisitions or strategic arrangements in the future, which also could require us to seek additional equity or debt

financing.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and accompanying notes in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires that we make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Changes in the facts and circumstances
could have a significant impact on the resulting financial statements. We believe the following critical accounting policies
affect our more complex judgments and estimates. We also have other policies that we consider to be key accounting poli-
cies, such as our policies for revenue recognition, including the deferral of revenues and gross profit on sales to distributors;
however, these policies do not meet the definition of critical accounting estimates because they do not generally require us
to make estimates or judgments that are difficult or subjective.

Inventery Valuation. We assess the recoverability of inventories through an on-going review of inventory levels in relation
to sales history, backlog and forecasts, product marketing plans and product life cycles. To address the difficult, subjective
and complex area of judgment in determining appropriate inventory valuation in a consistent manner, we apply a set of
methods, assumptions and estimates to arrive at the net inventory amount by completing the following: First, we identify
any inventory that has been previously reserved in prior periods. This inventory remains reserved until sold, destroyed or
otherwise disposed of. Second, we examine the inventory line items that may have some form of obsolescence due to non-
conformance with electrical and mechanical standards as identified by our quality assurance personnel and provide reserves.
Third, the remaining inventory not otherwise identified to be reserved is compared to an assessment of product history
and forecasted demand, typically over the last six months and next six months, or actual firm backlog on hand. Finally, an
analysis of the result of this methodology is compared against the product life cycle and competitive situations in the mar-
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ketplace driving the outlook for the consumption of the inventory and the appropriateness of the resulting inventory levels.
Demand for our products may fluctuate significantly over time, and actual demand and market conditions may be more
or less favorable than those that we project. In the event that actual demand is lower than originally projected, additional
inventory write-downs may be required.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We review long-lived assets, including goodwill, fixed assets and purchased intangible
assets, for impairment whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recov-
erable and record an impairment charge if necessary. Such evaluations compare the carrying amount of an asset to future
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset and are significantly impacted by estimates of future prices
and volumes for our products, capital needs, economic trends and other factors, which are inherently difficult to forecast.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We evaluate the collectibility of our accounts receivable based on a combination of
factors. In circumstances where we are aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations to us, we
record a specific allowance to reduce the net receivable to the amount we reasonably believe will be collected. For all other
customers, we recognize allowances for doubtful accounts based on a variety of factors including the length of time the
receivables are past their contractual due date, the current business environment, and our historical experience. If the
financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate or if economic conditions worsened, additional allowances may be
required in the future. Accounts receivable write-offs to date have been immaterial.

Income Taxes. We are required to estimate income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process
involves estimating the actual current tax liability together with assessing temporary differences in recognition of income
for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in our
consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that the deferred tax assets will be recovered from future
taxable income and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation allowance against the
deferred tax asset. We operate within multiple taxing jurisdictions and are subject to audit in these jurisdictions. These
audits can involve complex issues, which may require an extended period of time to resolve and could result in additional
assessments of income tax. In our opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all years.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS Nos. 141 and SFAS Nos. 142, Business
Combinations and Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 141 replaced Accounting Principles Board (APB)
No. 16 and eliminates pooling-of-interests accounting. It also provides guidance on purchase accounting related to the rec-
ognition of intangible assets and accounting for negative goodwill. SFAS No. 142 changes the accounting for goodwill from
an amortization method to an impairment-only approach. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill will be tested annually and
whenever events or circumstances occur indicating that goodwill might be impaired. SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142
are effective for all business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. Upon a company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142, a
company ceases to amortize goodwill recorded for business combinations consummated prior to July 1, 2001, and intangi-
ble assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 that do not meet the criteria for recognition under SFAS No. 141 are reclassified to
goodwill. Companies are required to adopt SFAS No. 142 for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. We adopted
SFAS No. 142 on December 30, 2001, the beginning of fiscal 2002. In connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, we
performed a transitional goodwill impairment assessment. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 did not have
a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets, which
supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-lived Assets and for Long-lived Assets to be disposed
of; however, it retains the fundamental provisions of that statement related to the recognition and measurement of the im-
pairment of long-lived assets to be “held and used.” In addition, the Statement provides more guidance on estimating cash
flows when performing a recoverability test, requires that a long-lived asset to be disposed of other than by sale be classified
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as “held and used” until it is disposed of, and establishes more restrictive criteria to classify an asset as “held for sale.” We
adopted SFAS No. 144 on December 30, 2001, but the adoption did not have a material impact on our results of operations
or financial position.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS
No. 146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather
than at the date of commitment to an exit or disposal plan. This statement is effective for exit or disposal activities initi-
ated after December 31, 2002. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 146 will have a material impact on our
financial statements.

In December 2002, FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,
an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123. This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-based
Compensation, to provide alternative methods of transition for an entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. It also amends the disclosure provisions of that Statement
to require prominent disclosure about the effects on reported net income of an entity’s accounting policy decisions with
respect to stock-based employee compensation. Finally, this Statement amends APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial
Reporting, to require disclosure about those effects in interim financial information. Since we are continuing to account for
stock-based compensation according to APB 25, our adoption of SFAS No. 148 requires us to provide prominent disclo-
sures about the effects of FAS 123 on reported income and will require us to disclose these affects in the interim financial
statements as well.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

All of our investments are entered into for other than trading purposes. Our interest income is sensitive to changes in the
general level of U.S. interest rates, particularly since the majority of our investments are in short-term instruments. Based
on our investment holdings as of December 28, 2002, an immediate 1% decline in the interest rates for such instruments
would decrease our annual interest income by $1.1 million. We believe that our investment policy is conservative, both in
terms of the average maturity of our investments and the credit quality of the investments we hold.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of fiscal year end 2002 and 2001 and the selected consolidated statements of
operations data for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements included in
this Annual Report. The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of fiscal year end 2000, 1999 and 1998 and the selected
consolidated statements of operations data for fiscal 1999 and 1998 have been derived from audited consolidated financial
statements not included in this Annual Report. You should read this selected consolidated financial data in conjunction
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our consolidated financial
statements and the notes to those statements included in this Annual Report.




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data (in thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Year
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Revenues $182,016 $ 74,065 $103,103 $46,911 $ 5,609
Cost of Revenues 79,939 31,930 35,601 15,770 2,371
Gross Profit 102,077 42,135 67,502 31,141 3,238
Operating expenses:
Research and development 32,001 28,978 19,419 8,297 4,587
Selling, general

and administrative 33,877 20,056 17,648 7,207 2,095
Write off of in-process

research and development - - 394 - -
Goodwill amortization - 4,187 3,307 - -
Impairment of goodwill and

other intangible assets 37 34,885 | - - -
Amortization of deferred .

stock compensation 5,173 5,276 ¢ 3,761 976 8
Operating expenses 71,088 93,382 44,529 16,480 6,690
Operating income (loss) 30,989 (51,247)3 22973 14,661 (3,452)
Other income (expenses): j
Interest income 1,582 3,624 3,964 402 261
Interest expense (617) (751) (1,162) (699) (206)
Other income {expense) (647) (2) 74 - -
Income (loss) before ‘

income taxes 31,307 (48,376) 25,849 14,364 (3,397)
Provision (benefit) for

income taxes 10,590 (2,803) 11,832 3,324 -
Net income (loss) $ 20,717 $(45,573). $ 14017 $11,040 $(3,397)
Net income (loss) per share: '
Basic $ 044 $ (0.99) $ 037 $ 073 $ (0.37)
Diluted $ 041 $ (0.99) $ 029 $ 025 $ (0.37)
Weighted-average common

shares outstanding: )
Basic 47,419 45914 38,326 15,152 9,129
Diluted 50,811 45,914 48,788 43,657 9,129

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

December 28, 2002

December 29, 2001

December 30, 2000

January 1, 2000

January 2, 1999

Cash, cash equivalents and

short-term investment
Working capital
Total assets
Long-term liabilities

Redeemable convertible
preferred stock

Total stockholders’ equity
(deficit)

$115,166
122,354
197,065
949

155,722

$101,248
106,556
145,021
3,817

125,407

$ 96,438
103,347
184,840

5,125

162,951

$14,706
14,281
41,958
6,223

12,750

8,003

$5,824
5,209
14,014
2,153

12,750

(5,149)




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Report of Independent Auditers
The Board of Directors Silicon Laboratories Inc,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Laboratories Inc. as of December 28, 2002 and
December 29, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 28, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Silicon Laboratories Inc. at December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 28, 2002, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

émt ¥ MLL?
Austin, Texas

January 15, 2003




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands, except per share data)

December 28, 2002

December 29, 2001

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,950 $ 82,346
Short-term investments 41,216 18,902
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $945 at December 28, 2002

and $490 at December 29, 2001 27,501 10,543
Inventories 13,319 5,221
Deferred income taxes 4921 2,268
Prepaid expenses and other 1,841 3,073
Total current assets 162,748 122,353
Property, equipment and software, net 29,781 20,038
Goodwill and other intangible assets 450 199
Other assets 4,086 2,431
Total assets $197,065 $145,021
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 13,272 $ 6,999

Accrued expenses 8,505 3,897

Deferred income on shipments to distributors 10,147 2,862

Current portion of long-term obligations - 2,039

Income taxes payable 8,470 -
Total current liabilities 40,394 15,797
Long-term debt and leases - 1,363
Other long-term obligations 949 2,454
Total liabilities 41,343 19,614
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock — $.0001 par value; 250,000

shares authorized; 48,904 and 48,640

shares issued and outstanding at
December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001, respectively 5 5
Additional paid-in capital 174,088 170,567
Stockholder notes receivable (228) (794)
Deferred stock compensation (13,092) (18,603)
Retained earnings (deficit) (5,051) (25,768)
Total stockholders’ equity 155,722 125,407
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $197,065 $145,021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




126 | CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Statements of Operations (in thousands, except per share dara)

Year Ended December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Revenues $182,016 $ 74,065 $103,103
Cost of revenues 79,939 31,930 35,601
Gross profit 102,077 42,135 67,502
Operating expenses:
Research and development 32,001 28,978 19,419
Selling, general and administrative 33,877 20,056 17,648
Write off of in-process

research and development - - 394
Goodwill amortization - 4,187 3,307
Impairment of goodwill and other

intangible assets 37 34,885 -
Amortization of deferred stock compensation 5,173 5,276 3,761
Operating expenses 71,088 93,382 44,529
Operating income (loss) 30,989 (51,247) 22,973
Other income (expense):
Interest income 1,582 3,624 3,964
Interest cxpense (617) (751) (1,162)
Other income (expense) (647) (2) 74
Income (loss) before income taxes 31,307 (48,376) 25,849
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 10,590 {2,803) 11,832
Net income (loss) $ 20,717 $(45,573) $ 14,017
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 044 $ (0.99) $ 0.37
Diluted $ 041 $ (0.99) $ 0.29
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 47,419 45914 38,326
Diluted 50,811 45914 48,788

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Common Stock

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Eqquity (in thousands)

Additional  Stockholder Deferred Retained Total
Number of Paid-In Notes Stock Earnings  Stockholders'
Shares Par Value Capital  Receivable Compensation (Defeciz) Equity
Balance as of January 1, 2000 30,016 3§ 19,014 $(1,472) $(15,330) §5,788 § 8,003
Conversion of Preferred Stock
to Common Stock 13,884 2 12,849 - - - 12,851
Net Proceeds from Initial Public Offering 3,200 - 90,646 - - - 90,646
Compensation expense related to warrants - - 153 - - - 153
Exercises of stock options 573 = - 1,705 - - - 1,705
Income tax benefit from exercise :
of stock options - - 1,685 - - - 1,685
Repurchase and cancellation
of unvested shares (25) - (70) - - - (70)
Repayment of stockholder
notes receivable - - - 270 - - 270
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 29 - 700 - - - 700
Deferred stock compensation - - 9,458 - (9,458) - -
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation - - - - 3,761 - 3,761
Purchase acquisitions 440 - 29,264 - (34) - 29,230
Netincome - - - - - 14,017 14,017
Balance as of December 30, 2000 48,117 5 165,404 (1,202) (21,061) 19,805 162,951
Exercises of stock options and warrants 469 - 587 - - - 587
Income tax benefit from exercise
of stock options - - 662 - - - 662
Repurchase and cancellation
of unvested shares (14) - (24) 24 - - -
Repayment of stockholder )
notes receivable - - - 384 - - 384
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 68 - 1,120 - - - 1,120
Deferred stock compensation - - 2,818 - (2,818) - -
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation - - - - 5,276 - 5,276
Net loss - - - - - (45,573) (45,573)
Balance as of December 29, 2001 48,640 5 170,567 (794) (18,603)  (25,768) 125,407
Exercises of stock options 238 - 1,483 - - - 1,483
Income tax benefit from exercise
of stock options - - 1,170 - - - 1,170
Repurchase and cancellation
of unvested shares (51) - (98) - - - (98)
Repayment of stockholder
notes receivable - - - 566 - - 566
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 77 - 1,304 - - - 1,304
Deferred stock compensation - - (338) - 338 - -
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation - - - - 5,173 - 5,173
Net income - - - - - 20,717 20,717
Balance as of December 28, 2002 48,904 5  $174,088 $ (228) $(13,092) $(5,051) $155,722

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands)

Year Ended Decemeber 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Operating Activities
Net income (loss) $ 20,717 $(45,573) $14,017
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property,
equipment and software 11,755 7,968 6,218
Amortization of goodwill,
other intangible assets and other assets 445 4,608 3,632
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 37 34,885 -
Amortization of deferred stock compensation 5,173 5,276 3,761
Amortization of note/lease end-of-term interest payments 214 322 323
Equity investment loss 662 - -
Compensation expense related to stock options,
direct stock issuance, and warrants to non-employees - - 153
Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options 1,170 662 1,685
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (16,958) 3,072 (3,105)
Inventories (8,098) 1,998 (3,847)
Prepaid expenses and other (1,099) 839 (1,165)
Income tax receivable 2,086 (2,086) -
Other assets 20 71 (811)
Accounts payable 6,273 (979) 847
Accrued expenses 4,501 1,491 1,136
Deferred income on shipments to distributors 7,285 222 1,634
Deferred income taxes (3,614) (152) (302)
Income taxes payable 8,470 (912) (1,466)
Net cash provided by operating activities 39,039 11,712 22,610
Investing Activities
Purchases of short-term investments (77,062) (59,210) (63,012)
Maturities of short-term investments 54,993 84,138 25,593
Purchases of property, equipment and software (21,498) (5,400) (15,843)
Purchases of other assets (2,719) (821) (1,250)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired - - (14,433)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (46,286) 18,707 (68,945)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt - - 3,532
Payments on long-term debt (3,940) (1,535) (6,350)
Payments on capital leases (464) (531) (493)
Proceeds from repayment of stockholder notes 566 384 270
Proceeds from exercise of warrants - - 100
Proceeds from Employee Stock Purchase Plan (exercises) 1,304 1,120 700
Repurchase and cancellation of common stock (98) - (70)
Net proceeds from initial public offering - - 90,646
Net proceeds from exercises of stock options 1,483 587 1,705
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,149) 25 90,040
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8,396) 30,444 43,705
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 82,346 51,902 8,197
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 73,950 $ 82,346 $51,902
Supplement Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid $ 319 $ 424 $ 827
Income taxespaid (received), net 3 3,248 $ (1,104) $11,855

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Organization

Silicon Laboratories Inc. (the Company), a Delaware corporation, develops and markets mixed-signal analog intensive inte-
grated circuits (ICs) for the global communications market. Within the semiconductor industry, the Company is known as
a “fabless” company meaning that the ICs are manufactured by third-party foundries.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The Company prepares financial statements on a 52—53 week year that ends on the Saturday closest to December 31. Fiscal
year 2002 ended on December 28, fiscal year 2001 ended on December 29 and fiscal year 2000 ended on December 30.
All of the periods presented have 52 weeks. Fiscal year 2003 will have 53 weeks with the extra week occurring in the fourth
quarter of the year.

Principles of Consolidation and Foreign Currency Translation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiar-
ies. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. The functional currency of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar; accordingly, all translation gains and losses resulting from transactions denominated
in currencies other than U.S. dollars are included in net income (loss).

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash deposits and investments with a maturity of ninety days or less when purchased.

Short-Term Investments

The Company’s short-term investments have original maturities greater than ninety days and less than one year and have
been classified as available-for-sale securities in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.
The carrying value of all available-for-sale securities approximates their fair value due to their short-term nature. Shost-term
investments at December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001 consist of the following (in thousands):

Carrying Value
December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001
Municipal Securities $ 33,237 $ 15,867
Auction Rate Securities 7,979 3,035
$ 41,216 $18,902

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables,
accounts payable, and borrowings. The Company believes all of these financial instruments are recorded at amounts that
approximate their current market values.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined using the first-in, first-out method, or market. Inventories consist of

the following (in thousands):

December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001

Work in progress $ 7,291 $3,582
Finished goods 6,028 1,639
$13,319 $5,221

Property, Equipment, and Software

Property, equipment, and software are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and
amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets (generally four to five years).
Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is computed using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life or the term of the lease and such amortization is included with depreciation expense. Leasehold improve-
ments are depreciated over the contractual lease period or their useful life, whichever is shorter. Property, equipment and
software consist of the following (in thousands):

‘ December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001
Equipment $38,970 $24.917
Computers and purchased software- 10,249 8,633
Furniture and fixtures 1,079 940
Leasehold improvements 3,032 2,182

53,330 36,672
Accumulated depreciation (23,549) (16,634)
$29,781 $20,038

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets in accordance with FASB SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
of Long—lived Assets. Long-lived assets held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their net book value may not be recoverable. When such factors and circumstances
exist, the Company compares the projected undiscounted future cash flows associated with the related asset or group of as-
sets over their estimated useful lives against their respective carrying amounts. Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of
the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets and is recorded in the period in which the determination was made.

Equity Method Investments

Where the Company has investments in affiliated companies in which it has the ability to exercise significant influence
over operating and financial policies, but not control, these investments are accounted for using the equity method. When
special conditions warrant, for example when the Company is the sole funding source for an affiliated company and the
affiliated company has not generated sufficient cash flows to sustain its operations, the Company determines equity income
measurement by using the Hypothetical Liquidation at Book Value (HLBV) method. The HLBV method is a balance-sheet
oriented approach to equity method accounting and is calculated as the amount that the Company would receive if the
affiliated company were to liquidate all of its assets at recorded amounts and distribute the cash to creditors and investors in
accordance with their respective liquidation preferences.

The Company records investment loss under the caption other income (expense) in its consolidated statement of operations.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Among the significant estimates affecting the financial statements are those related to inventories,
accounts receivables, long-lived assets and income taxes. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and such differ-
ences could be material to the financial statements. ;

Risks and Uncertainties

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments primarily in market rate accounts. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its custom-
ers’ financial condition and generally requires no collateral from its customers. The Company provides an allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable based upon the expected collectibility of such receivables. The following table summarizes the
changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable (in thousands):

Balance at January 1, 2000 $569
Balance acquired from Krypton Isolation, Inc. ‘

(Krypton) purchase 56
Additions charged to costs and expenses 133

Write- off of uncollectible accounts -

Balance at December 30, 2000 ‘ 758
Additions (reductions) charged to costs and expenses (229)
Write- off of uncollectible accounts (39)
Balance at December 29, 2001 ‘ 490
Additions charged to costs and expenses 455

Write-off of uncollectible accounts ‘ -

Balance at December 28, 2002 $945

Substantially all of the Company’s products are fabricated by Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSMC). The in-
ability of TSMC to deliver wafers to the company on a timely basis could impact the production of the Company’s products
for a substantial period of time, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition
and results of operations.

The following is a detail of the Company’s end customers that accounted for greater than 10% of revenue in the respec-
tive fiscal years:

Year Ended December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Customer A 16% 12% %
Customer B - 15 46
Customer C - 13 _

Two of our distributors, Uniquest and Edom Technology, each selling products to several end customers in Asia, repre-
sented 20% and 16% of our fiscal 2002 revenues, respectively. No other distributor accounted for more than 10% of our
revenues in fiscal years 2002, 2001 or 2000.
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As of December 28, 2002, two distributors and one end customer accounted for 29%, 26% and 12% of gross accounts
receivable, respectively. As of December 29, 2001, two distributors and one end customer accounted for 21%, 21% and 10%
of gross accounts receivable, respectively. As of December 30, 2000, two end customers accounted for 58% and 11% of gross
accounts receivable, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales direct to customers is recognized upon title transfer, which generally occurs upon shipment.
Certain of the Company’s sales are made to distributors under agreements allowing certain rights of return and price protec-
tion on products unscld by distributors. Accordingly, the Company defers revenue and gross profit on such sales until the
product is sold by the distributors to the end customer.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $527,000, $472,000 and $717,000 in the fiscal years
ended December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

FASB SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-based Compensation, prescribes accounting and reporting standards for all
stock-based compensation plans, including employee stock options. As allowed by SFAS No. 123, the Company has elect-
ed to continue to account for its employee stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method in accordance with
APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. The Company’s basis for electing accounting treatment
under APB Opinion No. 25 is principally due to the satisfactory incorporation of the dilutive effect of these shares in the
reported earnings per share calculation and the presence of pro forma supplemental disclosure of the estimated fair value
methodology prescribed by SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000

Net income'(loss) - as reported $20,717 $(45,573) $ 14,017

Total stock-based compensation cost,
net of related tax effects included in
the determination of net income
as reported 5,173 5,276 3,761

The stock-based employee compensation
cost, net of related tax effects, that
would have been included in the
determination of net income if the fair
value based method had been applied to

all awards (25,137) (18,482) (8,658)
Pro forma net income (loss) $ 753 $(58,779) $ 9,120
Earnings per share

Basic - as reported $ 044 $ (0.99) $ 037

Basic - pro forma $ 002 $ (1.28) $ 024

Diluted - as reported $ 041 $ (0.99) $ 029

(%]

Diluted - pro forma $ 0.02 (1.28) $ 019
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Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) ‘

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, which establishes standards for report-
ing and display of comprehensive income and its components in the financial statements. There were no material differences
between net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) during any of the periods presented.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. This statement
requires the use of the liability method whereby deferred tax asset and liability account balances are determined based on
differences between financial reporting and the tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates
and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment, mixed-signal communication integrated circuits (ICs), consisting of eight prod-
uct areas. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board. The chief operating decision maker allocates resources and assesses performance of the business and other
activities at the consolidated level. |

Approximately $144.7 million, $48.7 million and $22.1 million of the Company’s revenues were from export sales for the
fiscal years ended December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively. The operations and assets
of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries were immaterial in all periods presented.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year financial statements to conform with current year presentation.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (in thousands, except
per share data):

Year Ended December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Net income (loss) - as reported $20,717 $ (45,573) $ 14,017
Basic:

Weighted-average shares of
common stock outstanding 48,780 48,431 43,628

Weighted-average shares of
common stock subject to repurchase (1,361) (2,517) (5,302)

Shares used in computing basic net
income (loss) per share 47,419 45,914 38,326

Effect of dilutive securities:

Weighted-average shares of common stock

subject to repurchase 1,130 - 5,131
Convertible preferred stock and warrants - - 3,235
Stock options 2,262 - 2,096
Shares used in computing diluted net ‘

income (loss) per share 50,811 45,914 48,788
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 044 ' $ (0.99) $ 037

Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 041 $ (099) $ 0.29
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Approximately 2,156,000, 4,199,000 and 462,000 weighted-average dilutive potential shares of common stock have been
excluded from the diluted net income (loss) per share calculation for the years ended December 28, 2002, December 29,
2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively, as their impact would have been anti-dilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) Nos. 141 and 142, Business Combinations and Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 141 replaces
Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 16 and eliminates pooling-of-interests accounting prospectively. It also
provides guidance on purchase accounting related to the recognition of intangible assets and accounting for negative good-
will. SFAS No. 142 changes the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only approach.
Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill will be tested annually and whenever events or circumstances occur indicating that good-
will might be impaired. SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 are effective for all business combinations completed after June
30, 2001. Upon a company’s adoption of SEFAS No. 142, a company ceases to amortize goodwill recorded for business
combinations consummated prior to July 1, 2001, and intangible assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 that do not meet the
criteria for recognition under SFAS No. 141 are reclassified to goodwill. Companies are required to adopt SFAS No. 142 for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 on December 30, 2001, the begin-
ning of fiscal 2002. Iniconnection with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company has performed a transitional goodwill
impairment assessment. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
results of operations and financial position since the Company’s existing balances of goodwill and other intangible assets
were not significant.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS No.
146 requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at
the date of commitment to an exit or disposal plan. This statement is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002. The Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 146 will have a material impact on its
financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-based Compensation — Transition and Disclo-
sure, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123. This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
based Compensation, to provide alternative methods of transition for an entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. It also amends the disclosure provisions of that State-
ment to require prominent disclosure about the effects on reported net income of an entity’s accounting policy decisions
with respect to stock-based employee compensation. Finally, this Statement amends APB Opinion No. 28, Interim Financial
Reporting, to require disclosure about those effects in interim financial information. Since the Company is continuing to
account for stock-based compensation according to APB 25, adoption of SFAS No. 148 requires the Company to provide
prominent disclosures about the effects of SFAS No. 123 on reported net income (loss) and will require the Company to
disclose these effects in the interim financial statements as well.
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3. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The components of intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

Workfore  Customer Base  Acquired Technology ~ Patenss  Goodwill Toral
Balance at December 30, 2000 $ 309 $ 92“2 $ 863 $104 $37488 § 39,686
Amortization (168) (161) (106) (40) (4,187) (4,602)
Write-down of assets (6) (821) (757) - {33,301) (34,885)
Balance at December 29, 2001 135 :-— - 64 - 199
Adjustments (135) - - - 135 -
Acquisition of assets - - - 350 - 350
Amortization - - - (62) - (62)
Write-down of assets - - - - (37) (37)
Net balance at December 28, 2002 $ - $ - $ - $352 § 98 §$§ 450

During fiscal 2001, the Company performed an assessment of the carrying value of the Company’s long-lived assets record-
ed in connection with the Company’s acquisitions of Krypton and SNR. This assessment was performed pursuant to SFAS
No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-lived Assets and for Long-lived Assets to be Disposed of. The Company
performed this assessment because it became aware of the following factors and circumstances:
 The revenue streams associated with those assets had decreased significantly since their acquisition and the
Company did not expect to have any significant or identifiable future cash flows related to those assets;
¢ The Company determined that further development or alternative uses of the acquired technologies were
remote; and ‘
» The Krypton office was closed in August 2001 and the related workforce had since either ceased to work
for the Company or been reassigned to new projects which were unrelated to the projects on which they
previously worked.

The Company compared the carrying value for those assets that had separately identifiable cash flows to the projected undis-
counted future cash flows to be derived from those assets over their remaining estimated useful lives. The Company placed
no value on those assets that did not have separately identifiable cash flows as the factors normally judged to constitute
future value, such as the expectation of future business, revenues and/or cash flows, the expectation of ongoing develop-
ment of new products, the good name and reputation of the acquired company, ctc. appeared to be absent.

As aresult of this assessment, the Company concluded that the value of those assets had become permanently impaired and
recorded charges for $33.3 million and $37,000 to write-down related goodwill in fiscal 2001 and 2002, respectively, and
$1.6 million to reduce the carrying value of related intangible assets to their fair value in fiscal 2001.

4, Equity Investment in a Non-Publicly Traded Company

On June 14, 2002, the Company made an equity investment in a start-up venture, ASIC Design Services, Inc. (ADS), with
an initial investment of $1.3 million in the form of convertible-preferred stock. ADS is engaged in the design and develop-
ment of proprietary integrated circuits (ICs) used in networking devices.

The Company has a contingent obligation to make two additional convertible-preferred stock investments in ADS totaling
$2.7 million based on ADS’ achievement of certain milestones and the satisfaction of other conditions. Additionally, the
Company has an exclusive right, but not the obligation, to purchase ADS for $15 million in cash or common stock in con-
nection with the occurrence of certain events.
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At December 28, 2002, the Company’s voting interest in ADS was less than 20% of the total ownership of ADS. However,
the Company determined, based on APB Opinion No. 18 The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Com-
mon Stock and other relevant guidance that it has the ability to exercise significant influence, but not control, over the
management of ADS as a result of its contractual rights, rights as an equity stockholder, ability to designate a member of
ADS’ Board of Directors, which the Company has done, and its position as their primary funding source for future opera-
tions. Therefore, the Company has accounted for its investment in ADS using the Hypothetical Liquidation at Book Value
(HLBV) method under the equity method of accounting. The Company is using the HLBV method to determine its equity
investment loss because the Company believes that it is unlikely that the other stockholders could bear their proportionate
share of ADS’ loss. Under this method, the Company’s loss is equivalent to ADS’ cash expenditures for the period.

For the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002, the Company recorded an equity investment loss of $0.7 million from its
investment in ADS, included in other expense.

5. Long-Term Liabilities

The Company has a revolving line of credit agreement (the Agreement) with a commercial bank. Under the provisions of the
Agreement, the line of credit allows for borrowings of up to the lesser of $5 million or 80% of eligible accounts receivable
at the bank’s prime lending rate (4.25% as of December 28, 2002). The bank facility is secured by the Company’s accounts
receivable, inventory, capital equipment and other unsecured assets (excluding intellectual property). At December 28, 2002
and December 29, 2001, a letter of credit for $0.4 million relating to a building lease was outstanding under the facility. As
a result, available borrowings under this facility were $4.6 million at December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001. There
are covenants related to net worth and liquidity associated with this line of credit, with which the Company is in compliance
as of December 28, 2002.

Long-term debt and leases consist of the following:

December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Note payable, at 9.08%, payable in monthly
installments of $24,800 through March 1, 2003
with a $200,600 interest payment due at maturity $ - $ 351
Note payable, at 9.77%, payable in monthly
installments of $4,100 through June 1, 2003 - 68
Note payable, at 9.91%, payable in monthly
installments of $14,000 through September 1, 2003 - 270
Note payable, at 10.22%, payable in monthly
installments of $5,800 through December 1, 2003 - 126
Note payabile, at 6.71%, payable in monthly
installments of $30,600 through February 28, 2003
with a $243,200 interest payment due at maturity - 411
Note payable, at 6.92%, payable in monthly
installments of $19,300 through July 31, 2003
with a $152,900 interest payment due at maturity - 347
Note payable, at 7.13%, payable in monthly installments
of $40,000 to $46,000 through April 30, 2004
with a $399,200 interest payment due at maturity - 1,184
Note payable, at 7.5%, payable in monthly installments
of $9,900 to $11,400 through April 30, 2004
with a $98,100 interest payment due at maturity - 292
Capital lease obligations - 353
- 3,402
Current portion - (2,039)

Long-term.portion $ - $1,363
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The notes payable and capital lease obligations represent borroWings from three institutional financing providers for equip-
ment financing. In fiscal 2002, the Company made prepayments of $2.4 million to extinguish all of its outstanding obligations
to these financing providers.

6. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock :

As of December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001, no shares of preferred stock were outstanding. On March 23, 2000,
simultaneously with the closing of the Company’s initial public offering, all outstanding shares of the Company’s Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock were converted on a one-for-two ratio into an aggregate of 13,884,190 shares of the Company’s
common stock. Also upon completion of the public offering, the number of authorized shares of preferred stock increased from
8,000,000 to 10,000,000 shares. The Company’s board of directors will have the authority to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of
preferred stock in one or more series and to designate the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of each of the series.

Common Stock
The Company had 48,903,731 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 28, 2002. Of these shares, 814,932

shares were unvested and are subject to rights of repurchase that lapse according to a time based vesting schedule.

As of December 28, 2002, the Company had reserved shares of common stock for future issuance as follows:

Employce Stock Option Plans o 9,281,491
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 709,005
Total shares reserved 9,990,496

On January 2, 2003, the amount of shares reserved for the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and the Employee Stock Purchase
Plan automatically increased by 2,445,187 and 244,519, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Purchase Plan) was adopted by the Company’s board of directors on January 5,
2000. Eligible employees may purchase a limited number of shares of the Company’s common stock at 85% of the market
value at semi-annual intervals. As of December 28, 2002, a total of 883,787 shares of the Company’s common stock were
authorized for issuance under the Purchase Plan. There were 77,460 and 67,981 shares issued under the Purchase Plan in
fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, respectively.

Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plans ‘

In fiscal 2000, the Company’s board of directors and stockholders approved the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2000 Plan).
The 2000 Plan contains programs for (i) the discretionary granting of stock options to employees, non-employee board
members and consultants for the purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock, (ii) the discretionary issuance of com-
mon stock directly to employees (direct issuance shares), (iii) the granting of special below-market stock options to executive
officers and other highly compensated employees of the Company for which the exercise price can be paid using earnings
deductions and (iv) the automatic issuance of stock options to non-employee board members. Upon the Company’s initial
public offering, the 2000 Plan incorporated all stock options and direct issuance shares outstanding under the 1997 Stock
Option/Stock Issuance Plan (the 1997 Plan). Under the 1997 Plan, employees, members of the Company’s board of direc-
tors and independent advisors were granted stock options or were issued direct issuance shares as a direct purchase or as a
bonus for services rendered to the Company. In connection with the acquisition of Krypton in fiscal 2000, the Company
assumed outstanding options for 90,449 shares of the Company’s common stock.
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The 2000 Plan and the 1997 Plan contain similar terms. The direct issuance shares and the stock options contain vesting
provisions ranging from four to eight years. If permitted by the Company, stock options can be exercised immediately and,
similar to the direct issuance shares, are subject to repurchase rights which generally lapse in accordance with the vesting
schedule. The repurchase rights provide that upon certain defined events, the Company can repurchase unvested shares at
the price paid per share. The term of each stock option is no more than ten years from the date of grant. At December 28,
2002, 15, 456, 160 shares were authorized for issuance under the 2000 Plan. No further options or direct issuances may be
granted under the 1997 Plan.

The Company recorded no deferred stock compensation in fiscal 2002. The Company recorded deferred stock compensa-
tion of $3,294,000 and $9,492,000 in connection with stock options granted or assumed for 160,000 shares and 297,697
shares of common stock during fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively. These amounts represent the difference between the
exercise price of the stock option and the market price or the subsequently deemed fair value of the Company’s common
stock. The deferred stock compensation is amortized over the vesting periods of the applicable options, resulting in amorti-
zation expense of $5,173,000, $5,276,000 and $3,761,000 for fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

During fiscal 1999 and 1998, the Company made full recourse loans to employees of $1,267,500 and $147,500, respective-
ly, in connection with the employees’ purchase of shares through exercises of options. These full recourse notes are secured
by the shares of stock, are interest bearing at rates ranging from 1.8% to 5.9%, have terms of five years, and must be repaid
upon the sale of the underlying shares of stock. The Company has collected principal payments on these notes for $566,000,
$384,000 and $270,000 in fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The remaining balance of sharecholder notes as
of December 28, 2002 is $228,000. No loans were issued during fiscal 2002, 2001 or 2000.

A summary of the Company’s stock option and direct issuance activity and related information follows:

o i e B Prces W s
Balance at January 1, 2000 1,009,272 2,380,226 $0.05 - $16.00 $2.52
Additional shares reserved 2,090,449 - - -
Granted and assumed (2,413,331) 2,413,331 0.00 - 74.75 30.92
Exercised - (573,308) 0.00 - 31.00 2.98
Cancelled 138,834 (138,834) 1.75 - 57.50 31.38
Repurchase and cancellation
of unvested shares 25,000 - 2.50 - 10.00 2.80
Balance at December 30, 2000 850,224 4,081,415 0.00 - 74.75 18.26
Additional shares reserved 2,462,349 - - ‘ -
Granted (3,110,300) 3,110,300 0.00 - 3497 16.46
Exercised - (370,641) 0.00 - 15.44 1.58
Cancelled 175,599 (175,599) 0.28 - 66.00 21.51
Repurchase and cancellation
of unvested shares 13,667 - 0.05 - 200 1.76
Balance at December 29, 2001 391,539 6,645,475 0.00 - 74.75 18.26
Additional shares reserved 2,432,003 - - -
Granted (2,136,850) 2,136,850 18.33 - 3790 2411
Exercised - (237,567) 0.00 - 31.00 6.28
Cancelled 194,224 (194,224) 2.00 - 66.00 26.46

Repurchase and cancellation
of unvested shares 50,041 - 1.25 -  5.00 1.90

Balance at December 28, 2002 930,957 8,350,534 $0.00 - $74.75 $19.91
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In additon, the following table summarizes information about stock options that were outstanding and exercisable at
December 28, 2002. ‘

OQuistanding Exercisable
Weighted-Average

Range of Remaining Contractual. Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Drices Number of Options Life in Years Exercise Price  Number of Options Exercise Price
$ 000-$ 1.25 825,269 5.64 $ 0.59 782,769 $ 0.62
$175-$ 5.00 633,963 6.68 $ 2.59 633,963 $ 2.59
$10.00- $15.00 558,641 7.57. $12.67 350,997 $11.62
$15.10 - $20.24 2,804,181 8.70 $16.66 666,491 $16.29
$20.45- $31.00 2,683,300 8.81 $25.77 399,135 $28.42
$31.69 - $48.88 438,955 8.34 $41.41 60,210 $40.67
$52.69- $74.75 406,225 7.53 $56.61 195,737 $56.74
$ 0.00-5$74.75 $1991 3,089,302 $13.58

8,350,534 8.13

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as if the Com-
pany had accounted for its stock-based awards to employees under the fair value method of that Statement. The fair value
of these stock-based awards was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following assumptions:

Year Ended December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Employee Stock Option Plans:
Expected stock price volatility 85% 85% 88%
Risk-free interest rate 3.9% 4.6% 6.2%
Expected life (in years) 49 51 5.6

Dividend yield - - -

Employee Stock Purchase Plan:

Expected stock price volatility 85% 85% 88%
Risk-free interest rate 3.2% 3.5% 5.0%
Expected life (in months) 16 14 14

Dividend yield - - -

The weighted-average fair values of options granted during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $16.40, $12.09 and $26.80,
respectively. The weighted-average fair values for purchase rights granted under the Purchase Plan for fiscal 2002, 2001 and
2000 were $10.74, $10.05 and $11.94 respectively.

For purposes of pro forma disclosure, the estimated fair value of the Company’s stock-based awards to employees is amor-
purp p > pany ploy!

tized to expense over the vesting period of the underlying instruments. The Company’s pro forma information is as follows
(in thousands, except per share data):

December 29, 2001

Year Ended December 28, 2002 December 30, 2000
Pro forma net income (loss) $753 $(58,779) $9,120
Pro forma basic net income (loss) per share 0.02 (1.28) 0.24
Pro forma diluted net income (loss) per share 0.02 (1.28) 0.19
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Option valuation modéls require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility.
Because changes in the subjective assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in the opinion of manage-
ment, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the Company’s stock-
based awards to employees.

7. Commitmenis and Contingencies

The Company leases its facilities under operating lease agreements that expire at various dates through 2007. Some of these
arrangements contain renewal options, and require the Company to pay taxes, insurance and maintenance costs.

Rent expense under operating leases was $2,002,000, $1,724,000 and $1,065,000 for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The minimum annual future rentals under the terms of these leases at December 28, 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2003 $2,093

2004 2,088

2005 2,144

2006 1,691

2007 1,022

Thereafter -
Total minimum lease payments 9,038

Minimum Sublease Rental Income (22)
Total net minimum lease payments $ 9,016

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings that have arisen in the normal course of business. While the ultimate
results of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not expect them to have a material adverse
effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations.

On August 7, 2001, TDK Semiconductor Corporation commenced a lawsuit against the Company for alleged willful in-
fringement by its directaccess arrangement (DA A) products of a TDK-held patent. TDK’s complaint seeks unspecified treble
damages, costs and attorneys’ fees, and an injunction. On September 27, 2001, the Company served and filed an answer
to TDK’s complaint, in which the Company denied infringement and asserted that TDX’s patent is invalid. On March 27,
2002, the Company filed an amended answer and counterclaims in which the Company claimed that the TDK-held patent
is unenforceable due to inequitable conduct and asserted counterclaims seeking a declaration that the TDK-held patent is
invalid, not infringed and unenforceable. On November 6, 2002, a motion for summary judgment for non-infringement
was brought by the Company before the U.S. District Court, Central District of California. The court refused to grant the
Company’s request for a summary judgment that it did not infringe TDK’s patent as a matter of law. On January 6, 2003,
the court extended discovery through July 3, 2003, set a final date for all summary judgment motions of August 4, 2003,
and extended the trial date to November 2003. The Company is currently in the discovery phase of this litigation. This
lawsuit has involved, and may continue to involve, significant expense and may also divert management’s time and attention
from other aspects of the Company’s business. The Company intends to vigorously contest this case, however, the Company
is unable at this time to determine whether the outcome of the litigation will have a material impact on its results of opera-
tions, cash flows or financial condition in any future period.
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On December 6, 2001, a class action complaint for violations of U.S. federal securities laws was filed in the United States
District Court, Southern District of New York against the Company, four of its officers individually and the three investment
banking firms who served as representatives of the underwriters in connection with the Company’s initial public offering of
common stock which became effective on March 23, 2000. On April 19, 2002, a consolidated amended complaint, which
is now the operative complaint, was filed in the same court. The action is being coordinated with over 300 other nearly
identical actions filed against other companies. These claims are premised on allegations that the registration statement
and prospectus for the Company’s initial public offering did not disclose that (1) the underwriters solicited and received
additional, excessive and undisclosed commissions from certain investors, and (2) the underwriters had agreed to allocate
shares of the offering in exchange for a commitment from the customers to purchase additional shares in the aftermarket at
pre-determined higher prices. The action seeks damages in an unspecified amount. A court order dated October 9, 2002
dismissed without prejudice numerous individual defendants, including the four officers of our Company who had been
named individually. On July 15, 2002, the Company moved to dismiss all claims against it and the individual defendants.
The court has not ruled on this motion. Many of the parties in these actions, including the Company, are participating in
mediation discussions. Although these discussions are underway, there is no assurance that such discussions will result in any
meaningful progress for an acceptable settlement. The Company intends to vigorously contest this case, and is unable at this
time to determine whether the outcome of the litigation will h?ve a material impact on its results of operations, cash flows or
financial condition in any future period.

8. Income Taxes

As of December 28, 2002, the Company had state rescarch and development credit carryforwards of approximately
$671,000. The credit carryforwards do not expire.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the values used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s
deferred taxes as of December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001 are as follows (in thousands):

December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciable assets $1,597 $1,242
Prepaid expense 486 182
2,083 1,424
Deferred tax assets:
Research and development
tax credit carryforward 671 464
Reserves and allowances 1,164 1,083
Deferred income on
shipments to distributors 3,653 1,088
Accrued liabilities and other 808 389
6,296 3,024

Net deferred taxes $4,213 $1,600
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Significant components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes attributable to continuing operations are as follows
(in thousands):

December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Current:

Federal $13,811 $(1,436) $10,695
State 396 (215) 917
Total Current 14,207 (1,651) 11,612

Deferred:
Federal (3,517) (1,031) 202
State (100) (121) 18
Total Deferred (3,617) (1,152) 220
$10,590 $(2,803) $11,832

The Company’s provision (benefit) for income taxes differs from the expected tax expense (benefit) amount computed by
applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income (loss) before income taxes as a result of the following:

December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Pre-tax book income (loss)
at statutory rate 35.0% (35.0)% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 1.1 (0.2) 4.0
Non-deductible intangible amortization
and impairment charges - 271 -
Non-deductible deferred
compensation expense 59 3.8 5.1
Other permanent items (4.6) (0.5) 2.5
Tax credits (3.6) (1.0) (0.8)
33.8% (5.8)% 45.8%

The exercise of certain stock options which have been granted under the 2000 Plan results in compensation which is includ-
able in the taxable income of the exercising option holder and deductible by the Company for federal and state income tax
purposes. Such compensation results from increases in the fair market value of the Company’s common stock subsequent to
the date of grant of the exercised stock options and, in accordance with APB No. 25, such compensation is not recognized
as an expense for financial accounting purposes; however, the related tax benefits are recorded as an increase to additional
paid-in capital.

Substantially all of the Company’s operating income was generated from domestic operations during fiscal 2002. Undis-
tributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are considered to be permanently reinvested and, accordingly, no
provision for U.S. federal and/or state income taxes has been provided thereon.

The U.S. Internal Revenue Service has selected the Company’s 1999 and 2000 federal income tax returns for examination.
Management believes that the results of the examination will not materially affect the financial position or results of opera-
tions of the Company.
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9. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a defined contribution or 401(k) Plan for the benefit of substantially all employees. To be eligible
for the 401(k) Plan, employees must have reached the age of 21. Participants may elect to contribute up to 15% of their com-
pensation to the 401(k) Plan. The Company may make discretionary matching contributions of up to 10% of a participant’s
compensation as well as discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the 401(k) Plan. The Company’s contributions to the
401(k) Plan vest over four years at a rate of 25% per year. The Company contributed $320,000, $269,000 and $219,000 to
the 401(k) Plan during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Supplementary Financial Information (uncudited)

All of the quarterly periods reported here had thirteen weeks. Quarterly financial information for fiscal 2002 and 2001 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter
Revenues $60,196 $51,786 $41,185 $28,849 $23,583 $19,925 $16,120 $14,437
Cost of revenues 25,794 22,747 19,304 12,094 9,583 8,544 7,375 6,428
Gross profit 34,402 29,039 21,881 16,755 14,000 11,381 8,745 8,009
Operating expenses:
Research and development 8,364 7,379 8,211 8,047 7,728 7,672 7,070 6,508
Selling, general and
administrative 10,249 8,653 8,299 6,676 5,858 5,362 4,746 4,090
Goodwillamortization - - - - - - 2,084 2,103
Impairment of goodwill
and other intangible assets 37 - - - - 34,885 - -
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation 1,267 1,293 1,308 1,305 1,295 1,319 1,331 1,331
Operating expenses 19917 17,325 17,818 16,028 14,881 49,238 15,231 14,032
Operating income (loss) 14,485 11,714 4,063 727 (881) (37,857) (6,486) (6,023)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 406 351 367 458 684 856 1,047 1,037
Interest expense (168) (150) (148) (151) (173) (179) (201) (198)
Other income (expense) (352) (286) (9) - (2) 1 3 2
Income (loss) before
income taxes 14,371 11,629 4,273 1,034 (372) (37,179) (5,643) (5,182)
Provision (benefit)
for income taxes 4,547 3,747 1,618 678 (801) (651) (757) (594)
Net income:(loss) $ 9824 $ 7882 $ 2,65 $ 356 $ 429 $(36,528) $(4,886) $(4,588)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 020 8§ 017 $§ 006 $ 0.01 001 $ (0.79) 8 (0.11)$ (0.10)
Diluted $ 019 $ 016 $§ 005 $ 001 $ 001 $ (0.79) $ (0.11)$ (0.10)
Weighted-average common
shares outstanding:
Basic 47956 47,703 47482 47,129 46,659 46,210 45,840 45,367
Diluted 50,542 50,519 50,901 51,283 50,890 46,210 45,840 45,367
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Supplementary Financial Information (unaudited)

As of a percentage of revenues Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second Firse
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter  Quarter
Revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenues 429 439 469 419 40.6 429 458 445
Gross profit 57.1 56.1 53.1 58.1 59.4 57.1 54.2 55.5
Operating expenses:
Research and development 139 14.2 19.9 279 32.8 38.5 439 451
Selling, general and administrative 17.0 le.7 - 202 231 24.8 269 294 28.3
Goodwill amortization - - - - - - 129 14.6
Impairment of goodwill
and other intangible assets 0.1 - - - - 175.1 - -
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation 21 25 32 4.5 5.5 6.6 8.3 9.2
Operating expenses 33.1 334 433 55.5 63.1 2471 94.5 97.2
Operating income (loss) 24.0 227 9.8 2.6 (3.7) (190.0) (40.3) (41.7)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.5 2.9 4.3 6.5 7.2
Interest expense (0.3) (0.3) (0.4) (0.5) (0.7) (0.9) (1.2)  (1.4)
Other income (expense) 0.5) (0.7) - - - - - -
Income (loss) before income taxes 239 224 10.3 3.6 (1.5) (186.6) (35.0) (359)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 7.6 7.2 39 2.4 (3.4) (3.3) 4.7y (4.1)
Net income (loss) 16.3%  15.2% 6.4% 1.2% 1.9% (183.3)% (30.3)% (31.8)%
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Reconciliation Table of GAAP to Non-GAAP Financial Measures (in thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001
Fourth Third Second Firse Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarser
Revenues 360,196 $51,786 $41,185 $28,849 $23,583 $ 19,925 $16,120 $14,437
Operating income (loss) $14,485 $11,714 $§ 4,063 $ 727 $ (881) $(37,857) $(6,486) $(6,023)
Non-cash adjustments:
Goodwill amortization - - - - - - 2,084 2,103
Impairment of goodwill
and other intangible assets 37 - - - - 34,885 - -
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation 1,267 1,293 1,308 1,305 1,295 1,319 1,331 1,331
Non-cash adjustments 1,304 1,293 1,308 1,305 1,295 36,204 3,415 3,434
Adjusted operating income (loss) $15,789 $13,007 $ 5,371 $ 2,032 S 414 $ (1,653) $(3,071) $(2,589)
Adjusted operating margin 26.2% 25.1% 13.0% 7.0% 1.8% (8.3)% (19.1)% (17.9%
Net income {loss) $ 9,824 $ 7,882 $ 2,655 $ 356 S 429 $(36,528) $(4,886) $(4,588)
Non-cash adjustments:
Goodwill amortization - - - - - - 2,084 2,103
Impairment of goodwill
and other intangible assets 37 - - - - 34,885 - -
Amortization of deferred
stock compensation 1,267 1,293 1,308 1,305 1,295 1,319 1,331 1,331
Non-cash adjustments 1,304 1,293 1,308 1,305 1,295 36,204 3,415 3,434
Adjusted net income (loss) $11,128 $ 9175 $ 3,963 $ 1,661 §$ 1,724 $  (324) $(1,471) $(1,154)

Fiscal Year

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Operating income (loss) $30,989 §(51,247) $22,973 $14,661 $(3,452)
Non-cash adjustments:
Write off of in-process

research and development - - 394 - -
Goodwill amortization - 4,187 3,307 - -
Impairment of goodwill

and other intangible assets 37 34,885 - - -
Amortization of deferred

stock compensation 5,173 5,276 3,761 976 8
Non-cash adjustments 5,210 44,348 7,462 976 8
Adjusted operating income (loss) $36,199 $ (6,899) 530,435 $15,637 $(3,444)
Net income (loss) $20,717 $(45,573) $14,017 $11,040 $(3,397)
Non-cash adjustments:
Write off of in-process

research and development - - 394 - -
Goodwill amortization - 4,187 3,307 - -
Impairment of goodwill

and other intangible assets 37 34,885 - - -
Amortization of deferred

stock compensation 5,173 5,276 3,761 976 8
Non-cash adjustments 5,210 44,348 7,462 976 8
Adjusted net income (loss) $25,927 $ (1,225) $21,479 $12,016 $(3,389)

Shares used in computing

earnings (loss) per share and

adjusted earnings (loss) per share 50,811 45,914 48,788 43,657 9,129
Adjusted earnings (loss)

per share — diluted : $ 051 $ (0.03) $ 044 $ 028 $ (0.37)
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